
 

Addendum #2 
 

 
This Addendum modifies, amends, and supplements designated parts of the Contract Documents, 
Specifications and Drawings for: 

Westbrook Armory Unheated Storage Bldg. Project, Westbrook, Maine - Project No: 23SR23-402-D, 
Bid Number #24-002 

 
Directorate of Facilities Engineering 10 July 2023 

 
It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to notify all Subcontractors and Suppliers for various 
portions of the work of any changes or modifications contained in this Addendum. 

 
 

Clarification Items: (Includes answers to questions submitted after the pre-bid conference): 
Note:  Several firms asked the same question regarding IBC, Thermal Factor, painting.   They are answered once each. 

1. Q: Can the bid date be moved back two weeks due to difficulty obtaining a bid price from the 
manufacturer due to the holiday shut down? 

A:  After careful consideration and consultation with the AE firm and the organization the decision was 
made to maintain the existing bid date of 13 July 2023. 

2. Q: Colors asked for in the PEMB package call for Bronze panels to match the existing building. Please let 
us know if you require a custom coil color for the panels – this will be extremely expensive for this small 
of a building – you would be buying an entire coil to get the color desired. 

A: No custom color will be required for the project. 

3. Q:  Drawing S-001 – Building Codes and Standards: The code we are to design to is IBC-21. The State still 
uses IBC-15 – please clarify. 

 A: This project is required to follow UFC (Unified Facilities Criteria) which designates IBC-21. There will 
be no adjustments to IBC-15. 

4.  Q :  Drawing S-001 – Building Codes and Standards-Reference Standards –1. – Gravity Superimposed 
dead loads calls for a total of 15 PSF. The roof, roofing, metal roof deck are built into the PEMB loads. 
Mechanical and Sprinkler of 5 and 3 PSF respectively would be called Collateral Load. With the building 
having no sprinkler, Collateral Load could be 5 PSF. 

A:  CCE Structural Engineer is okay with the Collateral Load being 5 PSF. 

5. Q:  Drawing S-001 – Building Codes and Standards.  Thermal Factor of 1.0 is not sufficient for an un-
heated building. This should be 1.2 – please clarify. 

       A: CCEs structural engineer agrees that the thermal factor should be 1.2 and the final roof snow load 
will be 41 psf. 

6. Q:  Drawing S-001 – Building Codes and Standards-Lateral Loads – Wind - these speeds would change if 
the design code is changed to IBC-15. 

 A:  The IBC-21 code will not be changed to IBC-15. The wind loads will stay as designed. 

7. Q;  :  Drawing S-001 – Building Codes and Standards-Seismic – these figures would change if the design 
code is changed to IBC-15. 

 A:  The IBC code will not be changed to IBC-15. The Seismic load will stay as designed. 

8.  Q:  Drawing S-002 – Pre-Engineered Metal Building Framing.  (7) -Serviceability Criteria.   The deflection 
and drift criteria are currently designed for ceilings with brittle finish. Standard metal roof and wall 



 

deflection criteria are as per the attached (not attached this addendum) PDF file. Please clarify. 

A:  CCE has updated serviceability requirements for roof deflections to account for ceiling condition. 

9. Q:  Spec section 133419 – page 10 – G – 4. Bracing - Diaphragm bracing is not possible with PEMB 
standing-seam roofing or siding.  Please clarify. 

 A:  Please see structural drawings for requirements for diaphragm shear capacity. This shall be provided 
by the use of metal roof deck underneath the standing seam metal roofing. This diaphragm strength is 
required due to the space limitations at the front of the building. The front of the building cannot fit 
portal frames so the building's lateral system needs to be designed as a 3-sided box with the roof 
diaphragm providing the shear strength required to transfer lateral loads to rear and side walls. 

10.  Q:  Spec section 133419 – page 7 H and I for Roof and Wall systems call for Liner Panel. Please provide 
the gauge thickness desired. 

  A:  Gauge thickness for the roof and wall systems are selected from the PEMB manufacturer based on 
loads. Interior non-structural liner panels are not required for this project. 

11.  Q:  Is (3) coat fluoropolymer necessary for the roof and wall panels. It’s a little excessive and the soffit 
panels don’t specify (3) coat. 

 A:  CCE recommends staying with 3 coats for longevity and durability. 

12.  Q:  There is no footing step indicated on foundation please clarify if there is any needed and where 
they are located. 

 A:  No footing step is required, at this moment. The detail will remain in the set. 

13.  Q:  Epoxy paint is called out in the finish schedule abbreviations, but not shown in the room finish 
schedule please clarify. 

  A:  No epoxy painting is required. Exposed steel structure will be factory primed, other steel 
accessories can be galvanized. 

14.  Q:  Notes 1 & 2 on page A601 conflict with room finish schedule. Please clarify. 

 A:  Concrete bump walls may be bare concrete without treatment. Disregard notes 1 & 2 on finish     
schedule. 

15.  Q:  Please clarify spec section 101423.16 Room Identification Panel Signage. Is this an allowance? If so, 
what is the amount? If this is not an allowance, please provide more detail for pricing. 

A:  The signage requirement will not be required for this building. 

16.  Q:  Please confirm only blocking needed other than on detail 2-page A-602? 

   A:  The blocking shown on A-602 is to provide a fill material to prevent trash from being deposited in  
the hole created between the jamb framing and the concrete bump wall. Presuming that no other 
blocking will be necessary, but it is available to use should the contractor need it for shimming or 
attachment of any wall mounted equipment. 

17.  Q:  Please confirm fire extinguishers are by owner. 

 A:  Owner to provide fire extinguishers as noted on LS-001 in the legend. 

18. Q:  Section 2.4.F.2.a of division 133419 notes 10” deep girts, would you accept an alternative of 8”, 9.5” 
or 12” deep girts? Depth of girts will be determined by design requirements. 

 A:  Response: 10” girts are required to coordinate with the bump walls. Spacing and gauge of the girts 
shall be adjusted based on the design requirements. 

19  Q:  2.7.B of division 133419 notes soffit panel to match profile of wall panel. Section 2.7.C defines a flat 
soffit panel. Is it acceptable if the soffit panel and wall panel match but are not flat profile? 

A:  Yes, this is acceptable. 



 

20.  Q:  Is it acceptable for the framed opening trim to be provided as 26 gage in lieu of 22 gage? 

 A: Yes, however, installation must be done with care to prevent denting or blemishes. 

21. Q:   Superimposed dead load of 15 PSF is defined on drawing S-001. The 15 PSF noted consists of 5 PSF 
for non ballast roofing and another 2 PSF is defined for metal roof deck due to a metal roof being 
specified the 5 PSF will not apply to the structure therefore, will a dead load of 10 PSF will be 
acceptable?  

A:  Yes 

22.  Q:  Does either endwall need to be designed for a future expansion? 

 A:  No, they do not need to be designed for future expansion. 

23.  Q:  Is it acceptable for all roof and wall liner panels to be supplied as 28 gage, polar white SP finish? 

 A:  The gauge of the roof and wall panels are determined by the PEMB manufacturer.  The finish of the 
roof panels is supposed to match the existing building in a bronze color, color to be confirmed by the 
owner from the manufacturer's standard color palette. Wall panels are to be gray to match armory 
building as indicated. All color selections to be made by the Owner from the manufacturer's standard 
color palette. No interior non-structural liner panel is required for this project. 

24.  Q:  The current industry standard to fabricate and receive a pre-engineered metal building is 6 months 
from submittal approvals. The Notice to Contractors stated the project must be substantially complete 
on or before 29 February 2024. Please consider extending the substantial completion date to 30 June 
2024 to allow time for completion within the contracted time. 

A: The substantial completion date has been moved to April 30, 2024. 

 

Specification Items:                 

1.  SECTION 10 14 23.16 ROOM-IDENTIFICATION PANEL SIGNAGE.  Delete in its entirety. 

 

Drawing Items: 

 
1.  Remove existing Sheets S-001, Structural General Notes & Abbreviations and S-002, Structural Notes and   

 Insert revised Sheets S-001, Structural General Notes & Abbreviations and S-002, Structural Notes. 
 

2.  Sheet A-601, Architectural Sections.  Delete Notes 1 and 2 for the room finish schedule. 
 

Attachments: 1. Sheet S-001, Structural General Notes & Abbreviations 
2. Sheet S-002, Structural Notes 
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